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Given the absence of a specific statutory provision or any
relevant legislative history indicating the <c¢riteria which
should be considered in assessing a Class II administrative
penalty under Section 109(b) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609(b),
it is reasonable to conclude that the criteria which should
be considered are those in 42 U.S.C. § 9609(a)(3).

Since no <civil penalty gquidelines have been issued under
Section 109 of CERCLA, the Presiding Officer is under no ob-
ligation to consider any particular penalty guidelines pur-
suant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.27(b). However, consideration of the
TSCA Guidelines and General Policy Framework may be helpful
in defining and explaining the <criteria in 42 U.S.C. §
9609(a)(3).

In assessing a Class II administrative penalty under Section
325(b)(2) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(b)(2), given the ab-
sence of any "issued" penalty guidelines, consideration of
the TSCA Guidelines and the General Policy Framework is par-
ticularly appropriate in defining and explaining the criteria
to be applied because of the requirement that a Class II pen-
alty under Section 325(b)(2) be assessed in the same manner
as a penalty under Section 2615 of TSCA.

Neither Section 103(a) of CERCLA nor the implementing regula-
tion, 40 C.F.R. § 302.6, requires that notification of a re-
lease of a hazardous substance include any particular infor-
mation, other than the fact of the release itself,.
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INITIAL DECISION

I. Background - Interlocutory Order Granting <Complainant's

Motion for Partial Accelerated Decision:

On May 3, 1989, an Interlocutory Order Granting Complainant's
Motion for Partial Accelerated Decision was issued in this case,
That Order, issued on motion of the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency ("EPA," "Complainant” or the "Agency"), found that A1l Re-
gfons Chemical Labs, Inc., d/b/a Advanced Laboratory ("Respondent,”
"A11 Regions” or "Advanced Labs"), had violated Section 103 of the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability
Act (CERCLA), 42 U.S.C. § 9603, and Section 304 of the Emergency
Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA) f[a.k.a. Title
III of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986
(SARA)], 42 U.S.C. § 11004, as alleged in the complaint.

Section 103(a) of CERCLA reguires a person in charge of a
vessel or an onshore facility, as soon as he or she has knowledge
of a release of a hazardous substance from such vessel or faci-
lity in an amount equal to or greater than the reportable quantity
(RQ) of that substance, to notify immediately the National Re-

sponse Center ("NRC").l1/ During the time Respondent was in charge

l/ Section 103(a), 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), provides, in per-
tinent part:

"Any person in charge of...an onshore facility shall, as
soon as he has knowledge of any release...of a hazardous sub-
stance from such...facility in quantities equal to or greater than
those determined pursuant to section 9602 of this title, immed-
iately notify the National Response Center...of such release."
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of the facility, th2re was 2 relzasz of chlorine, a hazard
substance, in 2 quantity equal t2 or Jraater taan tae Ry ior
chlorine and Respondent did not immediately notify the HNRC of the
release as soon as it had knowledge thereof.

Section 304(c)3/ of EPCRA requires an owner or operator of
a facility, as soon as practicabie after a release that requires
notice under Section 304(a),i/ to provide written follow-up emer-

gency notice (or notices, as more information becomes available)

2/ Section 304(c), 42 U.S.C. § 11004(c), provides:

"As soon as practicable after a release which reguires
notice under subsection (a) of this section, such owner or opera-
tor shall provide a written followup emergency notice (or notices,
as more information becomes available) setting forth and updating
the information required under subsection (b} of this section, and
including additional information with respect to--

{1} actions taken to respond to and contain the re-
lease,

(2) any known or anticipated acute or chronic health
risks associated with the release, and

{3) where appropriate, advice regarding medical atten-
tion necessary for exposed individuals,”

3/ section 304(a)(1l), 42 U.S.C. § 11004{a)(1), provides,
in pertinent part:

"(a) Types of releases

(1} Section 11002(a) substance which requires CERCLA
notice

If a release of an extremely hazardous substance
referred to in section 11002{a) of this title occurs from a facil-
ity at which a hazardous chemical is produced, used, or stored,
and such release reqguires a notification under s=2ction 103(a) of
the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Lia-
bility Act of 1980..., the owner or operator of the facility
shall immediately provide notice as described in subsection (b)
ef this section,”
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to include information required under Section 304(0).i/ Respond-

4/ Section 304(b), 42 U.S.C. § 11004(b) provides:
"(b) Notification
(1) Recipients of notice

Notice required under subsection (a) of this sec-
tion shall be given immediately after the release by the owner or
operator of a facility (by such means as telephone, radio, or in
person) to the community emergency coordinator for the 1local
emergency planning committees, if established pursuant to section
11001(c) of this title, for any area likely to be affected by the
release and to the State emergency planning commission of any
State likely to be affected by the release. With respect to
transportation of a substance subject to the requirements of this
section, or storage incident to such transportation, the notice
requirements of this section with respect to a release shall be
satisfied by dialing 911 or, in the absence of a 911 emergency
telephone number, calling the operator.

(2) Contents

Notice required under subsection (a) of this sec-
tion shall include each of the following (to the extent known at
the time of the notice and so long as no delay in responding to
the emergency results):

(A) The chemical name or identity of any substance
involved in the release.

(B) An idindication of whether the substance is on
the 1ist referred to in section 11002(a).

(C) An estimate of the quantity of any such sub-
stance that was released into the environment.

(D) The time and duration of the release.

(E) The medium or media into which the release
occurred.

(F) Any known or anticipated acute or <chronic
health risks associated with the emergency and, where appropriate,
advice regarding medical attention necessary for exposed indivi-
duals.

{G) Proper precautions to take as a result of the
release, including evacuation (unless such information is readily
available to tne community emergency coordinator pursuant to the
emergency plan).

(H) The name and telephone number of the person or
persons to be contacted for further information.




ent did not provide written follow-up emergency notice (or no-
tices, as more information became available) as s00n as azractic-
able after the release for, as of September 30, 1938, ninety-nine
(99) days had elapsed since written follow-up emergency notice
was practicable and none had been provided.

On May 30 and 31 and June 1, 1989, a hearing, which had
been requested by A1l Regions, was held in Springfield, Massachu-
setts, for the purpose of deciding the sole remaining issue of the
amount, if any, of ¢ivil penaities, which appropriately shoutd be
assessed for the violations found.

EPA proposed a Class Il administrative penalty of $25,000.00
for the violation of Section 103 of CERCLA. For the violation of
Section 304 of EPCRA, EPA proposed a Class Il administrative pen-
alty of $25,000.00 for the first day of noncompliance and $500.00
for each day of noncompliance thereafter. Since, as of September
30, 1988, ninety-nine (99) days had elapsed since a written fol-
low~up report was practicable and, since EPA alleged that a com-
plete report was not filed until November 15, 1988, a total pen-
alty of $97,000.00 ($25,000.00 + $72,000.00) was proposed for the
violation of Section 304 of EPCRA. Therefore, the total penalty
proposed by EPA for the two violations was $122,000.00.

In Respondent's Post-Hearing Memorandum filed on July 31,
1989, A1l Regions contends that the proposed penalty is excessive
and should be reduced for the following reasons:

(1) The proposed penalty is excessive when measured against

the penalty criteria set forth 1in the respective statutes;
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{2) The legislative history of hotn statutes spnows that tae
fact of the notice rather than the source of the notice is most
important and the notice requirements of the respective statutes
were complied with when {a) a representative of the Massachusetts
Department of Environmental Quality Engineering ("DEQE") reported
the release to the NRC at approximately 12:50 a.m. on June 18 and
provided information to EPA in a telephone discussion shortly
thereafter; and {b) the loca) community emergency coordinator for
the City of Springfield was on the scene within a few minutes of
the second incident on the evening of June 17 and conceded that
he would not have done anything differently if he had received
immediately the full information required; and

{3) The assessment of civil penalties under the Toxic Sub-
stance Control Act ("TSCA"™) for violation of notice and reporting
provisions indicates that the penalties assessed in this case
under CERCLA and the Right-to-Know Act are excessive.

On the basis of these arguments, A1l Regions maintains that
the penalty for violation of each of the two statutes should be

$3,000,00 for a total penalty of $6,000,00.

1I1. Applicable Statutory Provisions:

1. CERCLA - Section 109 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609,2/

5/ Section 109, 42 U.S$.C. § 9609 provides, in pertinent

part:
“{a) Class I administrative penalty

{1) violations
(Continued on page 8,)
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estanlishes two types of administrative pesralties which may be

7

s

tn2 agtice requirenents of 3section

(7]

assessed for a violation of
103, 42 U.S.C. § 9603: Class I administrative penalties and
Class II administrative penalties. The proceeding under CERCLA
in this matter is an administrative proceeding for the assessment

of a Class II civil penalty.

5/ Continued from page 7.

A civil penalty of not more than $25,000 per viola-
tion may be assessed by the President in the case of any of the
following--

{A) A vicolation of the requirements of section 9603
(a) or (b) of this title (relating to notice).

* * * * * * *
(3) Determining amount

In determining the amount of any penalty assessed
pursuant to this subsection, the Prasident shall take into account
the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity of the viclation or
violations and, with respect to the violator, ability to pay, any
prior nistory of such violations, the degree of culpability, eco-
nomic benefit or savings {if any) resulting from the violation,
and such other matters as justice may require.”

* * * * * *x *
{b} Class Il administrative penalty

A civil penalty of not more than $25,000 per day for
each day during which the violation continues may be assessed by
the President in the case of any of the following--

(1) A violation of the notice requirements of sec-
tion 9603(a) or (b} of this title.

¥* * * * * * x

Any civilt penalty under this subsection shall bhe
assessed and collected in the same manner, and subject to the
same provisions, as in the case of civil penalties assessed and
collected after notice and opportunity for hearing on the record
in accordance with section 554 of Title 5,

o e



While Section 103(al}(3), 42 U.S.C. § 9609(a)(3), specifies

e Ccriteria o De COASider2d 0 4533535709 a Li1ass

pETAl by, wiag
statute is silent as to tne criteria to be considared in assessing
a Class II penalty. An examination of the legislative history of
Section 109 has failed to reveal any indication of congressional
intent concerning the factors to be weighed in assessing a (lass
II penalty. Given the absence of a specific statutory provision
or any relevant legislative history, it is reasonable to conclude
that the criteria which must be considered in assessing a Class I
penaltty should also be considered in assessing & Class II penalty.
It would be unreasonable to assume that Congress intended to leave
the amount of Class II penalties to the unfettered discretion of
those who preside over the administrative hearings required by
the statute, which hearings are specified to be heid in accordance
with 5 U.S.C. § 554, It is unliikely that Congress would impose
the strict procedural requirements of the Administrative Procedure
Act upon the conduct of the proceeding and yet intend to leave
the determination of the amount of the monetary penalty to the
unrestricted judgment of the Presiding 0fficer. (Even though the
statute continually refers to "the President," pursuant to Section
115 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9615, the President has delegated the
authority to assess penalties under the Act.,} Moreover, since
Class II penalties are potentially larger than Class I penalties,
the criteria which should guide my judgment in determining the
amount of the Class Il penalty, if any, to be assessed herein,

should be at least as comprehensive as those criteria which are
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considered in assessing lesser Class 1 penaltijes. Therefore, in
determining the amount of the penalty for the viclation of Section
103, 42 U.S.C. § 9603, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.27(b),6/ herein,
I will take 1into account “the nature, c¢ircumstances, extent and
gravity of the violation or violations and, with respect to the
violator, ability to pay, any prior history of such violations,
the degree of culpability, economic benefit or savings (if any)
resulting from the violation, and such other matters as Jjustice
may require,”

I note that no civil penalty guidelines have been issued by
EPA under Section 109 of CERCLA for the assessment of penalties
for violations of Section 103. Thus, I am under no obligation to
consider any particuiar penalty guidelines pursuant to 40 C.F.R.
§ 22.27{(b)., However, as Respondent points out in its Post-Hearing
demorandum, the penalty criteria in the TSCA, 15 U.S.C. § 2615{a)

(2){8), are almost 1identical to those in 42 U,S.C. § 9609{a){3},

6/ 40 C.F,R., § 22.27(b) provides, 1in pertinent part:
"(b) Amount of civil penalty. If the Presiding O0ffi-
cer determines that a violation has occurred, the Presiding O0ffi-
cer shall determine the dollar amount of the recommended civil
penaity to be assessed in the initial decision in accordance with
any criteria set forth in the Act relating to the proper amount
of a civil penalty, and must consider any civil penalty guidelines
issued under the Act. If the Presiding 0fficer decides to assess
a penalty different in amount from the penalty recommended to be
assessed in the complaint, the Presiding Officer shall set forth
in the initial decision the specific reasons for the increase or
decrease,"
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and EPA has issued "3uidelines for tne Assessment of Civil Penal-
ties under Section 16 of TSCA,"7/ ("TSCA Guidelines"), as well as
"A Framework for Statute-Specific Approaches to Penalty Assess-
ments; Implementing EPA's Policy in Civil Penalties“E/ {"General
Policy Framework™) wherein it has defined and explained many of
the terms found in 42 U.S.C. § 9609(a}(3}.

On August 28, 1989, Complainant filed a motion to strike
pages 24 to 35 of Respondent's Post-Hearing Memorandum wherein
Respondent explicates its argument that the penalties assessed in
this case are excessive when compared with the assessment of
civil penalties under TSCA. Respondent's explication includes

citations, inter alia, to the TSCA Guidelines., Complainant moves

to strike this material on the grounds that Respondent did not
include the TSCA Guidelines in its prehearing exchange and did
not introduce the TSCA Guidelines into evidence during the hear-
ing. In response, Al1l Regions filed, on September 6, 1989, a
Memorandum in Opposition to Complainant’s Motion to Strike,
wherein it contends that EPA's arguments are without merit because
the Presiding Officer may take official notice of the TSCA Guide-
lines, The Consolidated Rules governing this proceeding provide

at 40 C.F.R. § 22.22(f):

1/ 45 F.R, 59770 (September 10, 1980).

8/ EPA General Enforcement Policy #GM-22 (February 16,
1984) .,

155
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Official notice may be taken of any matter
judicially noticad in  the Faderal Courts znd
of other facts within the specialized know-
ledge and experience of the Agency.

Clearly, I may take official notice of the TSCA Guidelines
which have been published in the Federal Register. I find no
merit in Complainant’s motion and it is hereby denied. |

Since the TSCA Guidelines and the General Policy Framework
were not issued to implement the penalty criteria of CERCLA, I am
not required to consider them in determining the appropriate pen-
alty under Section 109 of CERCLA. However, consideration of the
TSCA Guidelines and the General Policy Framework may be helpful
in defining and explaining the statutory penalty criteria which I
will apply herein,

2. EPCRA - Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045,2/
establishes two types of administrative penalties which may be
assessed for a violation of the emergency notification require-
ments of Section 304, 42 U.S.C. § 11004: Class I administrative
penalties and Class II administrative penalties. Like the pro-
ceeding herein under CERCLA, the proceeding herein under EPCRA is

an administrative proceeding for the assessment of a Class 11

civil penalty.

9/ sSection 325, 42 U.S.C. § 11045, provides, in pertinent

part:

{b) Civil, administrative and criminal penalties for
emergency notification

{1) Class 1 administrative penalty
{Continued on page 13.)

#
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Section 325(b)(2) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(b}(2}), which
provides for Class II administrative penalties, states that "any
civil penalty under this subsection shall be assessed and collec-
ted in the same manner, and subject to the same provisjons, as in
the case of civil penalties assessed and collected under Section
2615 of Title 15." As noted previously, Section 2615 of Title 15
governs the assessment of penalties under TSCA. 15 U.S.C. §
2615(a)(2){B) provides that in "determining the amount of a civil
penalty, the Administrator shall take {fnto account the nature,

circumstances, extent, and gravity of the violation or violations

2/ {(Continued from page 12.)

(A} A civil penalty of not more than $25,000 per
violation may be assessed by the Administrator in the case of a
violation of the requirements of section 11004 of this title.

* * * * * * *

(C) In determining the amount of any penalty
assessed pursuant to this subsection, the Administrator shall
take into account the nature, circumstances, extent and gravity
of the violation or violations and, with respect to the violator,
ability to pay, any prior history of such violations, the degree
of culpability, economic benefit or savings (if any) resulting
from the violation, and such other matters as justice may require.

(2) Class II administrative penalty

A civil penalty of not more than $25,000 per day
for each day during which the violation continues may be assessed
by the Administrator in the case of a violation of the require-
ments of section 11004 of this title....,Any civil penalty under
this subsection shall be assessed and collected in the same man-
ner, and subject to the same provisions, as in the case of civil
penalties assessed and collected under section 2615 of Title 15.

155
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and, with respect to the violator, ability to pay, effect on abi-
lity to continue to do business, any history of prior such viola-
tions, the degree of culpability, and such other matters as jus-
tice may require.”

Since no civil penalty guidelines have been jssued by the
Agency under Section 325 of EPCRA, I am not required by 40 C.F.R.
§ 22.27{b)10/ to consider any particular civil penalty guidelines
in assessing a penalty for a violation of EPCRA. However, as
noted above,ll/ EPA has issued TSCA Guidelines and a General
Policy Framework which may be helpful in defining and explaining
the statutory penalty criteria to be applied under EPCRA, Refer-
ence to the TSCA Guidelines 1is particularly appropriate under
Section 325 of EPCRA because of the explicit statutory require-
ment that a civil penalty under Section 325(b){(2) of EPCRA "shall
be assessed and collected in the same manner, and subject to the
same provisions, as in the case of civil penalties assessed and

collected under section 2615 of Title 15."

IITI. Findings of Fact
As noted previousty, on May 30 and 31 and June 1, 1989, a
hearing was held for the purpose of deciding the amount, if any,

of ¢civil penalties to be assessed herein. Thereafter, the

10/ See supra note 6.

2€e
11/ ee supra note 7.

—_—
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Respondent and the Complainant filed post-hearing memoranda, pro-
posed findings of fact, proposed conclusions of law and proposed
orders on July 31, 1985 and August 1, 1989, respectively. On
August 30, 1989 and August 31, 1989, the Respondent and Complain-
ant, respectively, filed reply memoranda.

In addition to the findings of fact previously made in my
Interlocutory Order Granting Complainant's Motion for Partial
Accelerated Decisfon, and incorporated by reference to the extent
not otherwise inconsistent with the findings of fact herein, on
the basis of the entire record, including the testimony elicited
at the hearing, the exhibits received in evidence and the submis-
sions of the parties, and giving such weight as may be appropri-
ate to all relevant and material evidence which is not otherwise
unreliable, I make the findings of fact which follow. Each mat-
ter of controversy has been determined upon a preponderance of
the evidence. Al1 contentions and proposed findings and conclu-
sions submitted by thne parties have been considered, and whether
or not specifically discussed herein, those which are inconsist-

ent with this decision are rejected,

1. Two chemical incidents occurred in a building housing
Advanced Labs at One Allen Street, Springfield, Massachu-
setts (the "Site") on Friday, June 17, 1988. Tr. 11-12,
288.

2. The first incident began shortly before 10:00 a.m. on Fri-

day, June 17, 1988, 1Tr. 12, 24.
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The Springfield Fire Chief, Raymond F. Sullivan, arrived
at the Site at approximately 10:00 a.m. on June 17, 1988.
Tr. 25-26.

Chief Sullivan came to the scene because a second alarm had
been issued. Tr. 25-26.

The second alarm on a chemical incident 1initiated the im-
plementation of the Hazardous Integrated Response Plan of
the City of Springfield. Tr., 26-27, 73.

A chemjcal reaction was taking place. Although there were
no visible flames, a cloud release of chlorine gas occurred
as a result of the first incident and consequently the area
within approximately one-half mile of the Site was evacu-
ated. Tr, 25-26, 30,

Mr., James Controvich, Emergency Response Coordinator for
the City of Springfield, was called by the Police Depart-
ment around 10:00 a.m. Friday, June 17, 1988, and informed
of the first incident. Mr. Controvich responded by going
to the command post to serve as a coordinator of the ambu-
lance service, the police department and civil defense to
insure that the evacuation process, shelter program and the
emergency medical services were operating smoothly. Tr.
74, 341-342,

Mr. Controvich made certain that the State of Massachusetts
DEQE had been notified. Tr. 343,

Mr. Controvich directed the evacuation of four or five ele-

mentary schools. Tr., 343.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.
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About 5,000 people, most of whom were school children, were
evacuated on Friday morning. Tr. 351.

Mr. Controvich testified that he thought he had all the in-
formation he needed to perform his duties at the Site on
Friday morning. Tr. 344,

The incident was declared secured and under control about
1:00 p.m. on Friday, June 17, 1988. Tr. 345,

The foreman of A1l Regions was of great assistance to the
Springfield Fire Department during the first incident. Tr.
79.

During the response to the first incident, firefighters
broke the windows on the west, south and east sides of the
building to permit it to ventilate so that they could de-
termine what was required to deal with the incident, Tr.
78-79.

After the first incident, Chief Sullivan issued instruc-
tions to the foreman of the company that all the windows of
the building at the Site should be boarded up because of a
fear of more rain which could produce additional chemical
reactions, Tr., 26, 79.

Mr. David Slowick of the State of Massachusetts DEQE
arrived at the Site about 10:35 a.m. on Friday, June 17,
1988. Mr. Slowick toured the inside of the building after
the first incident was under control. Mr., Slowick observed

several hundred (approximately 500) barrels stored in the

building., Tr. 436-438, 454,




17,

18,

19.

20,

21.

22.
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Rt approximately 3:00 p.m. on Friday, June 17, 1988, EPA
was informed by a "concerned citizen" of the incident which
had occurred at the Site at approximately 10:00 a.m., that
morning. Tr. 209-210.

On fFriday, June 17, 1988, at approximately 3:00 p.m., Mr.
Slowick received a telephone call from a representative of
EPA who stated that EPA had received a complaint from a
citizen concerning the facility at One Allen Street. Mr.
Slowick described the first incident to the EPA represent-
ative thereby informing EPA of the time, location and sus~
pected cause of the incident; the estimated amount of chemi-
cals {100 to 200 1bs.} involved; the evacuation of citizens;
the termination of the release; and DEQE's intention to per-
form a follow-up inspection on Monday, June 20, 1988, Tr,
439-441, 460-461.

A second incident at the Site began around 11:00 p.m, on
rriday, June 17, 1988, Tr. 12, 30, 54.

Chief Sulljvan arrived at the Site at approximately 11:10
p.m. on Friday, June 17, 1988, Tr. 12, 30, 54.

There was a fire on the second floor. A heavy cloud was
coming from the building. The fire produced a cnlorine
release, Tr., 56-57, 292; Complainant's Exh. 39,

A disaster emergency was declared by the DEQE of the State

of Massachusetts. Tr. 17.
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24,

25,

26,

27.

28.
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Around 11:30 p.m. on Friday, June 17, 1988, two Springfield
firemen entered thz bduilding and removed 2 1label from e
barrel, Tr. 37-38, 60.

The label identified the chemical in the barrel as trichlo-
roisocyanurate acid or trichloro-s-triazinetrione ("TCT").
The material had approximately a 90 percent chlorine base.
Chief Sullivan reviewed the nature of TCT in the CHRIS
Manual which was available at the scene in the HAZMAT truck.
Tr. 37-38, 43, 60-61, 181, 443; Respondent's Exhs, 6 and 7.
Chief Sullivan testified that he did not require any addi-
tional information concerning TCT for purposes of combating
the fire beyond that information obtained from the CHRIS
Manual, Tr, 42-43, 64-65, 69,

On Friday night, June 17, 1988, Chief Sullivan had no idea
of the quantity of TCT present at +the Site. Tr. 70.
Chief Sullivan did not know all the chemicals that were in
the building at the time of the fires and consequently did
not know what reactions might take place. Tr., 18, 68,
Chief Sullivan testified that based upon what he later
learned about the other chemicals in the building, he would
not have done anything differently on Friday evening, June
17, 1988, in his firefighting and combative efforts regard-
less of the presence of the other chemicails, except praobably
have the firefighters at a greater distance from the build-

ing, if possible. Tr. 68-69, 76-77.
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30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.
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Chief Sullivan sought tne advice of <cnemists from Jlin
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Tr. 19.

Of the twenty (20) fire companies in the City of Spring-
field, eighteen (18) operated at the Site during the second
fire. Tr. 19,

Fifty (50) to sixty (60) firemen received medical attention
as a result of fighting the fire. One was held over in the
hospital. Tr. 22,

The smoke cloud was probably a mile to a mile and a half
wide and extended six (6) to eight (8) miles across the
city. Tr., 16-17.

The cloud of <chlorine was over the <c¢ity until the early
hours of Monday, June 20, 1988. Tr. 21.

By the evening of Saturday, June 18, 1988, Chief Sullivan
decided to pour as much water as possible into the building
in order to accelerate the reaction because dull explosions
were taking place and fires were breaking out within the
building. Tr., 32-33.

Water was poured continuously into the building from about
7:17 p.m., Saturday evening, June 18, 1988, until approxi-
mately 3:00 a.m., Monday, June 20, 1988. Tr. 33.

The Springfield Fire Department poured approximately six
million gallons of water on the fire. Tr. 20.

Mr. Controvich, &Emergency Coordinator for the <City of

Springfield, was notified by the Springfield Police Depart-




38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43,
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ment around 11:15 p.m., on Friday, June 17, 1988, of th
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second incident., Mr. Controvich responded by going to
command post. Tr. 346,

A representative of All Regions Laboratories was on the
scene when Mr, Controvich arrived at the command post, but
Mr. Controvich did not speak to nim at that time, Tr. 347,
360-361.

Mr. Controvich 1learned almost immediately upon his arrival
the identity of one of the chemicals involved from the
label that had been removed from a drum. Tr. 347, 360.
Mr. Controvich requested a <chemical inventory from All
Regions Laboratories during the four (4) days of the fire,
but A1l Regions was unable to provide the inventory until
November of 1988, Tr. 348, 362-363.

Mr, Controvich testified that if he nad received a specific
list of chemicals and their guantities which were in the
building, other tnhan passing that information on to the
other agencies involved in combating the incident, there is
nothing else he personally would have done differently.
Tr. 364.

On the night of Friday, June 17, 1988 and into Saturday,
June 18, 1988, Mr, Controvich coordinated an evacuation of
the immediate neighborhood around the Site. Tr. 349.
Two separate evacuations took place in response to the se-
cond incident. On Friday night, an area about a mile to a

mile and a half from the Site in all directions was evacu-
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ated thereby affecting about 30,000 vpeople., 0On Saturday,
many of these pszople were oparmitted ta ret:
homes, On Saturday night, an area approximately three (3)
to five (5) miles downwind was evacuated affecting about
30,000 people, some of whom had been evacuated previously
on Friday night. Tr. 351,

Most people were permitted to return to their homes by Sun-
day night and a1l had returned by Monday night. Tr, 351-
352.

Mr. David Slowick of DEQE was contacted by the DEQE on-call
person at approximately 11:45 p.m, on Friday, June 17, 1988,
and informed of the second incident at the Site. Tr. 441-
442,

Mr. Slowick arrived at the Site at approximately 12:20 a.m.
on Saturday, June 18, 1988, and recognizing that a major
incident was occurring, contacted the NRC at approximately
12:50 a,m. on Saturday, June 18, 1983. Tr. 3445-447,
Mr. Slowick informed the NRC of the nature of the incident
and requested air monitoring and technical assistance from
EPA. Mr. Slowick informed the NRC of the location of the
incident; the approximate time the incident had begun; an
approximate number of containers (about 500) that were 1in-
volved; the nature of the containers; that the cnlorine fire
was in a large warehouse; that TCT was the probable chemical
involved; and that an evacuation of 30,000 people was taking

place, Tr, 447-449; Respondent'’s Exh. 1,
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During the second incident, Mr. Slowick did not xnow tne
number, names or quantities of other <¢nemicals present at
the Site. Tr. 457-458.

Mr. Slowick requested that someone from EPA contact him
and, as a result, the NRC arranged a telephone call from a
representative of EPA. During that conversation, Mr.
Slowick provided EPA with the information which he had
given the NRC. Tr. 449-452; Respondent's Exh. 1.

Mr. Paul Groulx, an environmental scientist with EPA,
served as EPA duty officer from 6:00 p.m. Friday, June 17,
1988, until approximately 8:00 a.m, Saturday, June 18,
1988. Tr., 267.

At approximately 1:00 a.m., on Saturday, June 18, 1938, Mr.
Groulx received a telephone call from the NRC informing him
that a representative of the DEQE had telephoned the NRC to
request EPA's assistance. NRC arranged a conference call
among Mr. Groulx, the DEQE representative, Mr. Slowick, and
the NRC representative. Tr., 267-269.

In this telephone conversation, Mr. Slowick, the DEQE re-
presentative, informed Mr., Groulx that a chlorine release
and major evacuation had occurred at Advanced Laboratories
at One Allen Street in Springfield and estimated that ap-
proximately 500 300-pound drums of a swimming pool chemical

material were in tne building. Tr. 270, 279, 237-288,

290-291. Respondent's Exh. 1.
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Mr. Groulx attempted to telephone the "responsible party,”
i.e. Advanced lLaboratories, but w3s unable to get 2n answzr
because, as Mr, Groulx concluded, the building was on fire
and no one was inside. Tr. 280, 293.

No one from Advanced Labs <called Mr. Groulx. Tr. 294.
At approximately 1:00 a.m. on Saturday, June 18, 1988, Mr,
Thomas Condon, an On-Scene Coordinator with the U.S. Envi-
ronmental Protection Agency, received a “"beeper c¢all"™ and
as a result, contacted the EPA duty officer Mr., Groulx, Tr,
84-85.

Mr. Condon was informed by Mr. Groulx that EPA had received
a request for assistance from the DEQE relayed to EPA
through the NRC. The assistance was requested in connec-
tion with a release of chlorine gas in Springfield, Massa-
chusetts, Tr. 85,

Mr., Condon drove to the scene of the incident in Spring-
field, arriving at the command post at approximately 3:30-
4:00 a.m. on Saturday, June 18, 1988, Soon after his
arrival, Mr. Condon 1learned that TCT was the principal
chemical involved and how the containers were stacked in
the building. Tr. 86, 88, 110, 113-115,

Soon after he arrived, Mr., Condon met with Mr. Slowick and
Mr. Higgins of DEQE and Mr. Controvich of the City of
Springfield. EPA's greatest immediate assistance to Mr.
Controvich was the provision of air monitoring equipment.

Tr. 88, 349-350.
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Mr. Condon asked Steven Novick, the EPA employee on standby
guty during Tne day on Saturaay, June 13, ivy33, to contact
the NRC and request the names of experts who might be of
assistance. As a resulit of that inquiry, NRC provided no
additional information or names of individuals who might be
of assistance, other than those whose names Mr. (ondon and
others at the Site already had, Tr. 117-118.

Personnel from the EPA Technical Ass{istance Team and con-
tractor, Roy F. MWeston, were present at the Site working
with Mr. Condon in air monitoring work. Tr. 120,

Mr. Condon was the EPA individual-in-charge from his arrij-
val at approximately 3:30 a.m, on Saturday, June 18, 1988
until approximately 1:00-2:00 a.m. on Sunday, June 19,
1988, at which time he was relieved by Mr. Rich Hayworth of
EPA. Tr. 105-108.

Mr. Hayworth was the individual-in-charge on behalf of EPA
from approximately 2:00 a.m., until 10:00 or 11:00 a.m. on
Sunday, June 19, 1988, when Mr. Condon returned and resumed
that responsibility for two to three hours after which Mr,
Condon was relieved by Mr, David Firenz. Tr. 106.

Mr. Condon testified that, in dealing with the second inci-
dent, information, other than that contained in the CHRIS
Manual, which was needed at the time of the incident inclu-
ded: (a) the amount of TCT present in the building; (b) the
relative amounts of T{T which had and had not been exposed

to water and whether there was a structural boundary between
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the tws; {2) 3n iaventory of other Ccheniza?
sent in tne duilding; and (d) <the Gocation of TIT  4ad
other chemicals in tne building. Tr. 111.

Mr. Steven Novick served as the EPA standby person, or duty
officer, from approximately 7:30 a.m. Saturday, June 18,
1988, until 7:30 a.m. Sunday, June 19, 1988. Tr. 179.
In that capacity, he assisted those on the scene by coordi-
nating the flow of information from the Site to personnel
within EPA, by attempting to contact all available experts
to provide information as to how to best address the second
incident and to minimize the release of chlorine gas and by
passing that information on to the EPA on-scene coordinator
and by obtaining additional resources including manpower
and equipment, Tr. 180-183,

Mr. Novick never asked Mr. Condon, the EPA on-scene coordi-
nator, to have the "responsible party" telephone him. Tr.
197.

Mr. Novick did not make any effort to contact anyone asso-
ciated with the "responsible party" during the weekend of
June 17-20, 1988. Tr. 220-221.

Mr. Novick testified that the procedure would have been to
contact the "responsible party" after EPA received notifi-
cation of the second incident from the NRC at 1:00 a.m. on
Saturday, June 18, 19388, However, he testified that the
need to make such contact had been obviated by 7:30 a.m. on

Saturday because it was his understanding that a represen-
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tative of the “responsible party" was alresady on the scene,
Tr. 2234-225.

Mr. Carolo Rovelli, an officer of Al1 Regions and of Armory
Distributors, came to the Site sometime in the early morn-
ing hours of Saturday, June 18, 1988, but was unable to
provide the Springfield Fire Department an inventory of the
chemicals in the building at the Site because Fire Chief
Sullivan did not permit him to enter the building. Tr.
75-76.

Mr. Rovelli told Chief Sullivan and others, including
representatives of DEQE, in attendance at a meeting in the
01d Post Office Building sometime in July 1988, that there
were about one thousand (1000) barrels of chemicals in the
building, each weighing three hundred (300) pounds. Tr.
36, 76, 315-317.

Mr. Gary Ritter, Manager of the Environmental Services
Department for Con-Test, Inc, of East Longmeadow, Massachu-
setts, was retained by All Regions on June 28, 1988, as a
consultant to assist in post-incident cleanup activities.
Tr. 395-399.

As of June 28, 1988, Mr, Ritter was aware that approxi-
mately 200,000 pounds of TCT had been involved in the re-
lease., Tr. 398.

Mr. Ritter met with representatives of EPA on two or three

occasions in July 1988 after the second incident, Mr,

Ritter also had telephone <conversations with representa-




74.

75.

76.

17.

28

tives of EPA. At no time did EPA request a written follow-
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with the release,. tPA did request, and Mr. Ritter provi-
ded, analytical information on the discharge which was en-
tering the sewer system during cleanup and sampling data
on soil samples and sludge samples. Tr. 400-401.

During the period Con-Test was retained by A1l Regions to
assist in the cleanup following the second incident, Mr.
Ritter met daily with representatives of DEQE to discuss
his efforts., DEQE did not request more information about
the chemical dnvolved 1in the release or the amount of
chemical involved in the release. Tr. 398-400,

Mr. Ritter submitted material safety data sheets for the
chemicals which had been present in the building to DEQE in
late June. These sheets provided the name of each chemical
present at the Site during the inc¢cident. Tr. 403, 430;
Respondent's Exh. 8,

A member of Mr, Ritter's staff informed A1l Regions of
their responsibilities wunder Title III of SARA after
September 30, 1988, i.e., after the complaint was filed in
this matter., Tr. 402, 425-429,

Mr. James Controvich, Emergency Response Coordinator for
the City of Springfield, sent a letter, dated October 14,
1987, to the Plant Manager of Armory Distributors, Inc. at
One Allen Street, Springfield, Massachusetts, to outline

certain requirements which establishments covered by the
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reporting requirement provisions of SARA must meet and to
invite those so covered to participate in the work of the
City's Emergency Planning Committee. No response was re-
ceived to this letter. Tr. 332-335; Complainant's Exh. 34.
Mr. Controvich sent a second letter dated February 8, 1988,
to the Plant Manager at Armory Distributors, One Allen
Street, Springfield, Massachusetts, requesting that the
company contact his office or DEQE to determine whether it
was covered by Title IIT1 of SARA. Included as an attach-
ment was a Title III fact sheet on Emergency Planning and
Community Right-to-Know. Tr. 335-337; Complainant's Exh.
35.

In March of 1988, Mr. Controvich had a telephone conversa-
tion with Roger Curran who said that he was with Advanced
Labs and was responding to the February 8 letter which Mr,
Controvich had sent to Armory Distributors. Messrs., Curran
and Controvich discussed the various aspects of SARA. Tr,.
337-339.

Mr., Curran described his operation as a warehouse operation
and concluded that it was not covered by the requirements
of Title IIl1 of SARA and the Right-to-Know program. Tr.
338, 359-360.

Roger Curran was the Production Supervisor for Al1l Regions
Chemical Labs, Inc, having served in that capacity since
November 1987. Tr. 102.

Mr., Controvich received a letter, dated October 7, 1988,
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from iMr. savid Martel, Esquire, of QJdoherty, Wallace, Pills~-
OUry and wdrpiny, rf.v., 30 &31CHG NOLICE wasd Jiven, putrsuanc
to 42 U.S.C. § 11004, of a cnemical release at Jne Allen
Street on June 17, 1988, Transmitted with the letter was a
report prepared by Con-Test, Inc., environmental consultant
to A1l Regions Chemical Labs, Inc. Tr. 353; Complainant's
Exh. 39.

Upon review of the Con-Test vreport, Mr, Controvich found
that it was incomplete and wrote Mr. David Martel a letter,
dated October 27, 1988, to request additional dinformation.
By letter, dated Hovember 15, 1988, Mr. iMartel replied and
submitted a supplemental report, prepared by Con-Test,
which provided the additional information requested by Mr.
Controvich., Tr., 354-356; Complainant's Exhs. 40 and 41.
Mr. Joseph Mdarotta, permanent duty officer at the EPA Emer-
gency Response Section in Lexington, Massachusetts, re-
ceijved a telephene call from the NRC on Jctober 5, 1938, to
report a release that had occurred in June 1988. Tr. 295-
302; Complainant's E£xh, 38.

The report of the discharge had been submitted by a repre-
sentative of Con-Test on behalf of Advanced Labs, One Allen
Street, Springfield, Massachusetts. The discharge was re-
ported to have occurred on June 17 and 18, 1988, as a re-
sult of a fire involving 180,000 pounds of chlorine mater-
jal. The name of the <contact person for Advanced Labs

which was given to Mr., Marotta was Mr. David Martel. Tr.
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301, Complainant's Exh. 38.

86. The total cost, directly and indirectly related to
cleanup, after the second 1incident was approximately
$1,205,000,00, Tr. 465-472,

87. A11 Regions' operations at One Allen Street were terminated
as a resuilit of the second incident and a place to which
operations might be relocated had not been found as of June

1, 1989. Tr. 472.

Iv. Calculatiocn of Civil Penalty
1. Calculation of Civil Penalty for Count I:

As noted above,l2/ in calculating the civil penalty for
the violation of Section 103(a) of CERCLA, I wil)l consider first,
with respect to the violation itself, the nature, circumstances,
extent and gravity of the violation and, with respect to the vio-
lator, ability to pay, any prior history of such violations, the
degree of culpability, economic benefit or savings (if any) re-
sulting from the violation, and such other matters as justice may
require.

(a) Nature of the VYiolation: The nature of the viola-
tion may be considered to be the essential character of the vio-
lation as defined by the requirement which has been v101ated.l§/

The requirement which was violated is the require-

12/ see supra p. 10.
12/ TSCA Guidelines, 45 F,R, 59771 {(September 10, 1980).
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facility notify the NR2L immediataly when thare ig 2 valsace nf a
designated hazardous subdstance in an amount equal to or greater
than the RQ for that substance. A major purpose of this notifi-
cation requirement is to alert government officials to releases
of hazardous substances that may require rapid response to pro-
tect public health and welfare and the environment, \Under Sec-
tion 104 of CERCLA, the federal government may respond whenever
there is a release into the environment of a hazardous substance
which may present an imminent and substantial danger to public
health or welfare. Such notification, based upon an RQ of the
hazardous substance, constitutes a trigger for informing the
government of a release so that the need for response can be
evaluated and any necessary response wundertaken in a timely
fashion.14/

As previously found, there was a release into the
environment at the Site of an RQ of chlorine, which is a hazar-
dous substance, during the period June 17-20, 1988. However, the
report required by Section 103{a) was not made to the NRC until
Jdctober 6, 19338, Respondent totally failed to meet i1ts legal
obligation to notify the NRC immediately so that EPA could eval-
uate the need for a response, Clearly, the second incident

which took place at the Site on June 17 required a rapid and

ii/ 48 F.R. 23552-23553 (May 25, 1983).
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extensive response to protect public healtn and welfare and tne
gnvironment. ResPONGENT’'S Taiidre TO prompiiy HdL1Ty iné Wiu OF
of the release was in complete derogation of its statutory respon-
sibilities.

{(b) Circumstances of the VYiolation: Circumstances may
be described as the probability of harm based upon the risk in-
herent in the violation even though, through some fortuity, no
actual harm resulted.l5/ Where, as here, the violation is a
failure to notify or report, the risk inherent in the violation
is a measure of the effect of such failure on the Agency's abil~
ity to implement the other provisions of the act, aven thcough
through some fortuity, the full potential harm may not have re-
sulted.

CERCLA establishes broad federal authority to deal
with releases or threats of releases of hazardous substances from
facilities and vessels. As noted above, a major purpose of the
notification requirement in S2ction 103{(a) is to alert EPA immed-
jately to the release of an RQ of a hazardous substance so that
EPA may make a prompt decision as to whether the release requires
a rapid response to protect public health and welfare and the en-
vironment from an imminent and substantial danger. Given the
findings of fact herein and the findings of fact and conclusions

of law in the Order Granting Complainant's Motion for Partial

15/ TSCA Guidelines, 45 F.R. 59772 {September 10, 1980).




Accelerated Decision, there can Se no doudt that during the tine

DamrmAanAdAant+s rac LY Abs A ~ £ o £ ami Y3+ +hann A e - walaaen -~ £
ECARS i _ 2 A .2 M ° k > . >

an RQ) of chlorine which required a rapid response to protect the
public health and welfare and the environment in Springfield from
an imminent and substantial danger,

EPA Tearned of the first incident fortuitously as a
result of a complaint from a "concerned citizen" some five (5)
hours after the incident began. Although Mr., Slowick reported
that 100 to 200 pounds of chemical were involved, he was unsure
about the quantity.l6/ EPA learned of the second incident some
two (2) hours after the incident began when a representative of
the Massachusetts DEQE called the NRC to request EPA's assistance,
There can be no doubt that there was a release of an RQ in con-
nection with the second incident. With significant delay in noti-
fication in connection with the second incident, EPA was prevented
from making an immediate assessment of the incident in order to
determine what, if any, responsive actions were required. The
purposes of CERCLA, and more particularly, those of Sections 103
and 104, were thwarted thereby., One can only surmise what may
have occurred if the NRC and, in turn, EPA had been notified
immediately as required.

The fact that local fire officials were on the scene

almost immediately after the second incident began and the City

16/ Tr. 438-441,
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Janzy 22¢72onces2 Zoriin
, i1 NG Wiy diministes th: reguirsment that th: savison Ga
charge at the Site notify tne NRC. Jdor does the fact tnat 10:zad
officials subsequently notified the DEQE reduce the risk inherent
in Respondent's failure to notify the NRC., Indeed, Section 304
of EPCRA establishes separate requirements for reporting certain
reteases of hazardous substances to state and local authorities
similar to the release reporting provisions under section 103 of

CERCLA., Under Section 304, the owner or operator of a facility

must report, inter alia, releases which require notification

under Section 103 of CERCLA to the community emergency coordinator
for the local emergency planning committee and to the state emer-
gency planning commission, Because state and local participation
for effective and timely emergency response is central to Title
Il of SARA, Congress has concluded that the state and local
organizations must be alerted to potentially dangerous <cremical
releases. The notification reguirements of Sections 103 and 304,
while similar in their purpose to protect the public and the envi-
ronment in the event of hazardous chemical releases, are separate
and independent requirements.l7/ Each requirement must be met,

Finally, the call to the NRC on behalf of Respondent
on October 6, 1988 constituted nothing more than an after-the-fact

attempt at technical complijance with the notification requirement.

17/ see 52 F.R. 13386 (April 22, 1987).
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necessary assessment to meet its response obligations imposed by
CERCLA.

(c) Extent of the VYiolation: The extent of the viecla-
tion is often described as the degree, range or scope of the vio-
1ation.l§/ In notification violations, the quantity of the regu-
lated substance is considered an indicator of the extent of the
violation. Here, the discharge was reported to have occurred as
a result of a fire involving 180,000 pounds of chlorine material
which is 18,000 times the RQ of ten (10) pounds. The extent of
the violation was substantial or major in degree.

(d} Gravity of the Violation: The gravity of the
violation is a measure of the overall seriousness of the viola-
tion.19/ 1In determining the gravity or seriousness of the noti-
fication violation here, several factors should be considered.
Among them are the harm resulting from the violation (including
both actual harm and the risk of harm inherent in the violation
at the time it was committed), the jimportance of the notification

regquirement to achieving the goal of the statute and the availa-

lﬁ/ TSCA Guidelines, 45 F.,R, 59771-59772 (September 10,
1330).

19/ TSCA 6uidelines, 45 F.R, 59773 (September 10, 1980).
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Dility from alternate sources of the information reguired to be
reported to cPA.ZU/

Both the harm resulting from the violation and tne
importance of the notification requirement in the overall statu-
tory scheme were discussed under "circumstances."2l/ As for the
availability from alternate sources of the information required
to be reported to EPA, Mr. Slowick of DEQE described the first
incident to EPA after he recelved a call from EPA at 3:00 p.m, on
Friday, June 17 and Mr. Slowick provided certain information per-
taining to the second incident to EPA at 1:00 a.m. on Saturday,
June 18, Specifically, Mr. Slowick informed the NRC of the
location of the second incident; the approximate time the inci-
dent began; an estimate of the approximate number of containers
involved; the nature of the incident {a chlorine fire in a large
warehouse); the probable chemical (TCT) which was involved; and
the evacuation taking place.

Complainant maintains that All1 Regions not only
failed to notify NRC of the second incident, but that the efforts
to combat the fire were hindered by the paucity of information
resulting from that failure, Thus, Mr. Condon of the EPA testi-
fied that information, other than that which was available, which

was needed to deal with the second incident included: {a) the

20/ General Policy Framework, pp. 14-15 (February 16, 19384).

21/ See supra pp. 33-36,
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amount of TCT present in the building; (b) the relative amounts
OF TLi wnicn nad and naa A%L 02&n exposed Lo 4aiar and wagcazr
there was a structural boundary between the two; (c) an inventory
of other chemical materials present in the building; and {d) the
location of TCT and other chemicals in the bujlding, While it
may have been helpful to local, state and federal authorities to
have such information, I cannot penalize Respondent for a fajlure
to have provided it.22/

First, Mr, Rovelli, an officer of All Regions and
of Armory Distributors, came to the Site sometime in the early
hours of Saturday, June 18, 1988, but was unable to provide the
Springfield Fire Department an inventory of the chemicals in the
building at the Site because Fire Chief Sullivan, understandably,
would not permit him to enter the building. Second, I find no
statutory requirement that the person in <charge provide such
specific information as Mr., Condon desired, Section 103(a) itself
simply requires the person in charge of the facility to "notify"
the NRC immediately when there is a release of an RQ of a desig-
nated hazardous substance, The implementing regulation, 40 C.F.R.
§ 302.6, repeats the statutory requirement by simply providing

that:

22/ 1t should be noted that the complaint did not allege a
violation of Section 304{(a){l) of CERCLA, 42 u.S.C. § t1004(a)(1),
wnicn requires the owaer or operator to submit certain specific
information (to the exteat known and so long as ano delay in re-
sponding to the emergency results) to state and local authorities.
(See supra note 4,)
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(a) Any person in charge of a vessel or an

offshore or an onshore facility shall, as

5001 as ne  nas  Knowiedge OfF dhy reiease

{other than a federally vpermittad release or

application of a pesticide) of a hazardous

substance from such vessel or facility in a

quantity equal to or exceeding the reportable

quantity determined by this part in any 24-

hour perjod, immediately notify the National

Response Center ((800) 424-8802; in Washing-

ton, D.C. (202) 426-2675).
Thus, nejther the statute nor the implementing regulation requires
that the notificatfon include any particular information, other
than the fact of the release, especially that information which
Mr. Condon would Tike to have had.

When EPA issued 40 C.F.R, § 302.6 in proposed form,
it explained the mechanic¢s of notification and, in doing so, out-
lined the nature of the questions the duty officer at the NRC
would ask the caller: “When a call is received by the National
Response Center, the duty officer will ask for information inclu-
ding the name, address, and telephone number of the reporting in-
dividual; the identity, location, and nature of the release {e.g.,
the source, cause, quantity, and duration of the release); the
identity of the transporter or owner of the facility or vessel;
the nature of injuries or property damage; any other relevant
circumstances such as weather conditions; and any corrective
actions taken." Even these basic questions do not include a re-
quest for the type of information which Mr. Condon was seeking.
Admittedly, EPA received from DEQE a low estimate {up to 500

barrels} of the amount of TCT which was actually present in the

facility. However, there is no evidence that the quantity of the
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ded to accelerate the reaction by pouring as aJdcin water as possi-
ble into tihne ouilding could have been estimated accurately Ly tae
Respondent or anyone else on the scene.

In summary, in assessing the gravity of the viola-
tion, I will not consider the failure to provide information for
which there is no statutory or regulatory requirement. However,
I will give full weight to the potential for harm resulting from
the violation, the importance of the notification requirement and
the extent of de facto notification from alternate sources, as
well as the timeliness of that notification.

Considering the nature, circumstances, extent and
gravity of the violation, and giving full weight to the availa-
bility of information from alternate sources after the incident
occurred, I conclude that the initial penalty which is appro-
priate for the violation of Section 103 of CERCLA is $20,000.00.

(e) The remaining factors whicn I will consider are
ability to pay, any prior history of such violations, the degree
of culpability, economic benefit or savings, if any, resulting
from the violation, and such other matters as justice may require,
It is possible that consideration of these factors may result in
an upward or downward adjustment of the initial penalty calcula-

tion of $20,000.00.

As for ability to pay, Resnondent "did not make




ability to pay an issue in these nraceadings,'<¢3/ Ag for orior

hictnrv nf curch wvinlatiane  famnladimant hac rancadad +hat Menos
nenalty factor for prior history of violation does not apply as
an aggravating factor...."24/

The degree of Respondent's culpability is measured
by Respondent's knowledge and control with respect to the viola-
tion.gil As for Respondent's knowledge, the test is whether the
Respondent knew or should have known of the CERCLA requirement or
of the general hazardousness of its failure to meet those require-
ments.gg/ As for Respondent's control, factors such as now much
control Respondent had over the events constituting the violation;
the foreseeability of the events constituting the violation; and
whether the Respondent took reasonable precautions against the
events constituting the violation should be considered.gll

As for knowledge of the CERCLA notification require-
ment, Respondent, like everyone else, is charged with knowledge of
the United States Code and rules and regulations duly promulgated

thereunder.28/ The Supreme Court has said: "Just as everyone is

EE/ Respondent's Post-Hearing iemorandum at 13 (July 31,
1989).

24/ Complainant's Post-Hearing Memorandum at 33 (August 1,
1989).

Ei/ TSCA Guidelines, 45 F.,R. 59773 (September 10, 1980).
26/ 1d.

27/ General ?olicy Framewsork, p. 18 (February 16, 1984).

28/ 44 u.S.Cc. § 1507.
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congress nas orovided tnat the aooearance of rules and reguiations
in the Federal Register gives legal notice of tneir contents.“ﬁi/
The CERCLA notification requirement which Respondent violated 1is
spelled out in 42 U.S.C. § 9603 and is repeated again in 40 C.F.R.
§ 302.6., Therefore, Respondent is charged with knowledge of the
CERCLA notification requirement which it violated.

As for the factor of control, whether Respondent
notified the NRC or not was entirely within its control. The
action required was simply a telephone call to an 800 numoder.
Respondent did not make that call until several months after the
release., There c¢an be no question as to foreseeability of the
violation. Failure to notify the NRC in these circumstances pre-
sent here was clearly a violation of CERCLA. There is no evidence
that Respondent took reasonable precautions against the event
constituting the violation., Thus, for example, no evidence was
introduced to show that Respondent attempted to make the call or
that Respondent had developed a contingency plan in the event of
a release which required such a call, Indeed, it appears from
Respondent's reaction to the notices wnich Mr. Controvich had
sent Respondent in late 1937 and again in early 1933 tnat Respond-
ent decided that it was not covered by Title III of SARA. Since

Respondent is charged with knowledge of the legal requirement here

29/ Federal Crop Ins. Corp. v. Merrill, 332 u.S. 380, 384-
385 (1947).
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justment, upward or downward, for culpability.

There is no evidence that Respoandent's "attitude”
justifies a penalty adjustment. The good faith effort to comply
with Section 103 did not occur until October 6, 1988 about a week
after the filing of the complaint, The expiration of more than
three months between the release and the notification to the RNRC
could hardly warrant classifying the notification as prompt,.

There is no evidence that Respondent derived any
economic benefit or savings from its failure to comply with Sec-
tion 103. As Complainant itself conceded, "in this case, the
economic benefit derived from failure to provide emergency noti-
fication (the cost of a phone call) is considered negligible."30/

Respondent points out that "Al11 Regions was put out
of business by the fire and has not resumed operations in Spring-
field or anywhere else."3l/ Moreover, althougn A)1 Regions did
not make ability to pay an issue in these proceedings, Respondent
urges me to “"keep in mind the expenses which A1l Regions incurred
as a direct consequence of the fire."32/ ‘Wnile it is indeed un-

fortunate to the company, to its employees and to the community

30/ <complainant's Post-Hearing Memorandum, p. 34 {August 1,
1989).

31/ Respondent's Post-Hearing temorandum, p. 14 (July 31,
1989},

32/ Id. at 13,
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that A1l Regions is no longer in operation, I find no basis to
take tnat ract into consideration in setting Ung penaiiy TOor tng
violation found. The threat of a civil penalty did not force
A1l Regions out of operation; the inability to find another suit-
abtle location did. Moreover, as for Respondent's cleanup costs,
while there is some question as to who ultimately may bear the
expense,33/ the general civil penalty policy is that normally
there should be no reduction for these costs, since it is part of
the cost of the violation,34/ Therefore, I conclude that these
factors provide no just basis to reduce the penalty.

In conclusion, the appropriate penalty for Count 1

of the complaint is $20,000,00,

33/ Tr. 465-472; 475-478, Respondent objected to any consi-
deration of evidence pertaining to its insurance coverage for
cleanup expenses on the ground that a jury in a personal injury
case would not be permitted to hear such evidence under the "col-
lateral source"” rule, First, the rules of evidence upon which
the Respondent relied, whether those of Massachusetts or any
other jurisdiction, do not apply. Part 22 of Title 40 of the
Code of Federal Regulations governs this proceeding. Second,
this proceeding is an administrative proceeding under the Admin-
istrative Procedure Act, before an Administrative Law Judge, not
a civil trial before a jury. Finally, and most important, this
proceeding is a federal administrative proceeding designed to
protect the public interest, namely the public health and welfare
and the enviranment, not a civil suit DHrought for the purpose of
securing monetary damages for a private party.

gi/ TSCA Guidelines, 45 F.R. 59775 (September 10, 1980).
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As noted above,35/ in calculating tiz civil penalty for

(34}

tne violation of Section 30+ of EZPCRA, 1 will consider, f{irst,
with respect to the violation, the nature, circumstances, extent
and gravity of the violation and, with respect to the violator,
abjlity to pay, effect on ability to continue to do business, any
history of prior such violations, the degree of culpability, and
such other matters as justice may require.

(a) Nature of the Violation: As explained above,36/
the nature of the violation is the essential character of the
violation as defined by the requirement which has been violated.

The requirement which was violated is the require-
ment of Section 304(c) of EPCRA that requires an owner or operator
of a facility, as soon as practicable after a release that re-
quires notice under Section 304(a), to provide written follow-up
emergency notice (or notices, as more information becomes avail-
able) to include dinformation required under Section 304(b).

EPCRA is intended to encourage and support emergency
planning efforts at the state and local levels and provide the
public and local governments with information concerning potential

chemical hazards present 1in their communities. The emergency

35/ supra pp. 13-14.

See
36/ See supra p. 31,
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available to the community emergency coordination pursuant to the
emergency plan); and

(8) The name(s) and telephone number(s) of the per-

son or persons to be contacted for further information.

The follow-up reports must include additional information with
respect to:

(1) Actions taken to respond to and contain the re-
lease;

(2) Any known or anticipated acute or chronic health
risks associated with the release; and

(3) Where appropriate, advice regarding medical at-
tention necessary for exposed individuals.

This information is intended to assist state and
local authorities in their efforts to respond to the release and
thereby protect the public health and welfare and the environment
from any dangers resulting therefrom.

Respondent did not submit the required follow-up re-
port until OQOctober 7, 1988, and that report proved to be incom-
plete., Respondent submitted a supplemental report on November 15,
1988, which provided the information which had been missing from
the initial submission. One hundred and forty-four (144) days
had elapsed between the date on which the foallow-up report was

practicable and the date on which it was submitted. With such a
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significant delay, Respondent, in effect, made a nullity of tne
LeydIrEmENT under  S5eStion Su+ Ji IFUARA Tu  gruviie a  eiicizn
follow-up notice as soon as practicable to the appropriate author-
ities to assist them in their efforts to respond to the release
and thereby protect the public health and welfare and the environ-
ment from any continuing dangers resulting from release. Respond-
ent's failure was in complete derogation of its statutory respon-
sibilities.

(b) Circumstances of the Violation: As explained pre-
vious]y,}l/ circumstances may be described as the probability of
narm based upon the risk inherent in the violation even though,
through some fortuity, no actual harm resulted. Where, as here,
the violation is a failure to notify or report, the risk inherent
in the violation is a measure of the effect of such failure on
the governmental agency's ability to implement the other provi-
sions of the Act, even though through some fortuity, the full po-
tential harm may not have resulted.

Because state and local participation for contin-
uing effective and timely emergency response is central to Title
IIT of SARA, Congress has concluded that the state and local or-
ganizations must be alerted and kept informed through follow-up
reports as to potentially dangerous chemical releases. The fail-
ure to provide such follow-up reports as soon as practicable after

the release completely undermined the congressionally mandated

37/ See supra p. 33.
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tions, as pointed out above,éﬁ] the quantity of the regulated
substance is considered an indicator of the extent of the viola-
tion. Since the amount of chlorine material involved was 180,000
pounds or 18,000 times the RQ, the extent of the violation was
clearly substantial, or major in degree,

(d) Gravity of the Violation: The risk of harm inherent
in the violation at the time it was committed and the importance
of the notification requirement to achieving the goal of the sta-
tute have already been described in (b) above.ggl The availa-
bility from alternate sources of the information required to be
reported to state and local authorities should also be considered
in assessing the gravity of the violation.

At a meeting at the 01d Post O0ffice Building in July
1988, Mr. Carolo Rovelli, anofficer of A11 Regions, informed those
in attendance, including representatives of DEQE and Fire Chief
Sultlivan, that there were about one thousand (1000) barrels of che-
micals in the building, each weighing three hundred (300) pounds.

Mr., Gary Ritter, Manager of the Environmental Ser-
vices Department of Con-Test, Inc., was retained by A1l Regions on

June 28, 1988, to assist in post-incident <cleanup activities.

33/ See supra p. 36.

39/ See supra p. 48.
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de metl daily witn represeptatives of DEJE To discuss his eofforts.
e, Rittar cubhmittad mataria) esfatv data chaate Fam +ha rhomdo
cals which had been present in the building to DEQE in late June.
The sheets provided the name of each chemical present at the Site
during the incident, DEQE did not request more information about
the chemical involved in the release or the amount involved.

Mr. Ritter also met with representatives of EPA on
two or three occasions in July 1988. In addition, he had tele-
phone conversations with representatives of EPA. EPA reqguested,
and Mr. Ritter provided, analytical information on the discharge
which was entering the sewer system during cleanup and sampliing
data on soil samples and sludge samples, At no time did EPA re-
quest a written follow-up notice from Mr. Ritter or from Con-Test
in connection with the release. After the notice of violation
was filed in this matter, a member of Mr, Ritter's staff informed
A11 Regions of their responsibilities under Title III of SARA.

While the nature of the communications Detween Mr,.
Rovelli and state and local authorities and between Mr., Ritter and
representatives of DEQE and EPA did not meet the specific require-
ments of Section 304(c} of EPCRA, it is clear that Respondent's
representatives were in communication with local, state and fede-
ral authorities some days after the release and continued to com-
municate with them during the cleanup period. Moreover, the evi-

dence shows that these representatives provided whatever informa-

tion the government authorities requested,
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23, 1338), some of tnhe information reguirzd to De reporteg under
S2ction 304 became known to local, state and fedaral authorities.
See Findings of Fact 23, 24, 25, 29, 39, 42, 43, 44, 47, 49, 52,
60, 64 and 65.

Considering the nature, circumstances, extent and
gravity of the violation, and giving full weight to the availa-
bility of information from alternate sources, I conclude that the
Class II civil penalty which is appropriate for the violation of
Section 304 of EPCRA is $20,000.00 for the first day of noncom-
pliance and $400.00 a day thereafter for each of the remaining
one hundred and forty-four (144) days of noncompliance.

Turning to the remaining factors pertaining to the
Respondent itself, neither "ability to pay" nor "prior history of
such violations" warrant consideration in this proceeding.40/ As

for "effect on ability to continue to do business,” this factor
is clearly retated to the "ability to pay." No evidence was in-
troduced to show that the amount of the penalty would affect the
ability of Respondent to continue to do business. Indeed, the

Respondent has discontinued operations because it has been unable

to find a suitable location where operations might be resumed.

For the reasons previously cited,ii/ no adjustment is warranted
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by Respondent's knowledge and control with respect to the viola-
tion. The EPCRA notification requirement which Respondent vio-
lated is spelled out in 42 U,S.C. § 11004 and is repeated again
in 40 C.F.R. § 355.40. Therefore, Respondent is charged under
law with knowledge of EPCRA requirements which it violated.

Whether Respondent filed the required follow-up re-
ports or not was entirely within its control, The required report
was not filed until one hundred and forty-four (144) additiona)
days had elapsed after the date on which such filing was practica-
ble. This failure to file a timely follow-up report was clearly
a foreseeable violation of EPCRA,

While Respondent is charged with knowledge of the
legal regquirement here violated and with sufficient control over
the situation to avoid committing the viglation, ! nevertheless
conclude that a downward adjustment should be made in light of
Respondent's attitude during the cleanup period following the re-
lease. Even though the full report was not filed until November
15, 1988, Respondent did work closely with local, state and fede-
ral officials during the period immediately foliowing the release
to insure that cleanup was accomplished promptly and properly.
During that time, any information requested by governmental

authorities was provided promptly.42/ In recognition of this

42/ See supra pp. 49-51.
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cooperative attituds, 1

conclude

the initial penaliy for the

violation of Section 304 of EPCRA should e reduced by <ten (10)

percent. Justice does not require that any otner matters be con-

sidered., Therefore, the final

penalty assessed for the violation

of Section 304 of EPCRA shall be calculated as follows:

$20,000.00

+ 57,600.00

$77,600,00
- 7,760.00

$69,840.00

3. Conclusion

initial penalty for
first day of noncom-
pliance

initial penalty for
each of 144 days of

noncompliance
($400.00 X 144)

10 percent reduction

final penalty

Accordingly, I find that the appropriate penalty is as

follows:
Count I
Count II

Total

$20,000.00
69,840.00

$89,840.00
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ORDER 43/

Pursuant to Section 109 of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609, a
civil penalty in the amount of 3$20,000.00 1is hereby assessed
against Respondent, A1l Regions Chemical Labs., Inc., for the
violation of Section 103(a) of CERCLA. Pursuant to Section 325
of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045, a civil penalty in the amount of
$69,840.00 is assessed against Respondent, A1l Regions Chemical
Labs., Inc., for the violation of Section 304 of EPCRA.

IT IS ORDERED that Respondent, All Regions Chemical Labs.,

Inc., pay a c¢ivil penalty to the United States in the sum of
$20,000.00. Payment shall be made by cashier's or certified check
payable to the "Hazardous Substance Superfund." The check shall

be sent to:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
P.0. Box 371003 M
Pittsburgh, PA 15251

43/ Pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.27(c), this initial decision
shall become the final order of the Administrator within forty-
five (45) days after the service upon the parties unless an appeal
to the Administrator is taken by a party or the Administrator
elects to review the initial decision upon his own motion. 40
C.F.R. § 22.30 sets forth the procedures for appeal from this ini-
tial decision,
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IT IS ORDERED that Respondent, A1l Regions Chemical Labs.,

Inc., pay a c¢ivil penalty to the Ynited States in the sum of
$69,840.00. Payment shall be made by cashier's or certified check
payable to "Treasurer, United States of America.,” The check shall

be sent to:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agdency
P.0. Box 360187 M
Pittsburgh, PA 15251

Respondent shall note on these chacks the doctket number spe-
cified on the first page of this initial decision., At the time of
payment, Respondent shall send a notice of such payment and a
copy of the checks to:

Regional Hearing Cierk

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 1

John F., Kennedy Federal Building
Room 2003

Boston, MA 02203

Attention: Marianna B, Dickinson

7@%59

y B. Fraziqf, III
Ad strative Law Judge

DATED: D&W { ?g?

Washington, D.
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IN THE MATTER OF ALL REGIONS CHEMICAL LABS, INC., Respondent
Docket No. CERCLA-T-88-1089

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I do hereby certify that the original and three (3) copies

of the INITIAL DECISION in this proceeding was mailed CERTIFIED

MAIL, RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED to the Regional Hearing Clerk,

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Region I.

xéza—zy A,
®Pladys A, Bryant
Secretary

DATED: A_ﬂx_cu..lu_ /, /959

Wakhington, D.C.




